
 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
 

Kern Medical 
1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 

Conference Room 1058 
Bakersfield, California 93306 

 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, October 18, 2017 
 
 

11:30 A.M. 
 
 

BOARD TO RECONVENE 
 
 Board Members:  Berjis, Bigler, Lawson, McGauley, McLaughlin, Pelz, Sistrunk 

Roll Call: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED 
WITH A "CA" ARE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND NON-CONTROVERSIAL 
BY KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY STAFF. THE "CA" REPRESENTS THE 
CONSENT AGENDA. CONSENT ITEMS WILL BE CONSIDERED FIRST AND MAY 
BE APPROVED BY ONE MOTION IF NO MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR AUDIENCE 
WISHES TO COMMENT OR ASK QUESTIONS. IF COMMENT OR DISCUSSION IS 
DESIRED BY ANYONE, THE ITEM WILL BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT 
AGENDA AND WILL BE CONSIDERED IN LISTED SEQUENCE WITH AN 
OPPORTUNITY FOR ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
CONCERNING THE ITEM BEFORE ACTION IS TAKEN. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION SHOWN IN CAPS 
 

 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  10.18.17 
 
 

Page | 2  

 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 
 

1) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any matter 
not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members may respond 
briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for 
clarification, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report 
back to the Board at a later meeting. Also, the Board may take action to direct the staff 
to place a matter of business on a future agenda. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO 
MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR NAME BEFORE MAKING YOUR 
PRESENTATION. THANK YOU! 

 
BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 

 
2) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report on 

their own activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or 
take action to have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Government 
Code section 54954.2(a)(2)) 

  
RECOGNITION 

 
3) Presentation by the Vice President of Ambulatory Services recognizing the 

Chemotherapy Clinic remodel at Columbus Street –  
MAKE PRESENTATION    

 
ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
CA 
4) Minutes for Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors regular meeting on 

September 20, 2017 –  
APPROVE 
 

CA 
5) Proposed recommendation to reappoint Nancy Lawson (ex-officio) to the Kern County 

Hospital Authority Board of Governors, term to expire December 31, 2018 –  
 REFER TO KERN COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS TO MAKE APPOINTMENT 
 
CA 
6) Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 15 to Agreement 925-2002 with nThrive 

Solutions, Inc., an independent contractor, for oncology data management and 
abstracting services, for the period October 8, 2002 through June 30, 2017, extending 
the term for one year from July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018, and increasing the 
maximum payable by $289,545, from $9,953,731 to $10,243,276, to cover the 
extended term – 

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  10.18.17 
 
 

Page | 3  

 

CA 
7) Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 20716 with J. Chandrasekhar, 

Inc., an independent contractor, for professional medical services in the Department of 
Medicine, for the period October 15, 2016 through October 14, 2017, extending the 
term for one year from October 15, 2017 through October 14, 2018, and increasing the 
maximum payable by $380,000, from $380,000 to $760,000, to cover the extended 
term – 
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 

 
CA 
8) Proposed retroactive Change Order No. 6 to Agreement 2016-086 with Black/Hall 

Construction, Inc., an independent contractor, for construction services related to the 
G Wing decommission project, increasing the maximum payable by $6,861, from 
$513,850 to $520,711, to cover the cost of additional services –    

 MAKE FINDING PROJECT IS EXEMPT FROM FURTHER CEQA REVIEW PER 
SECTIONS 15301 AND 15061(b)(3) OF STATE CEQA GUIDELINES; APPROVE; 
AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN; AUTHORIZE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO 
APPROVE ANY FUTURE CHANGE ORDERS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$100,000, FOR A TOTAL CONTRACT PRICE NOT TO EXCEED $620,711 

 
CA 
9) Proposed Amendment No. 2 to Agreement 07616 with KSA Group Architects, an 

independent contractor, for engineering and architectural services from July 1, 2016 
through project completion, increasing the maximum payable by $250,000, from 
$450,000 to $700,000, to cover to cost of various design projects –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
CA 
10)  Proposed Amendment No. 9 to Agreement 1324502 with Vantage Technology 

Consulting Group, an independent contractor, for construction management services 
related to completion of the B wing emergency power project and IDF closet upgrades 
from December 19, 2012 through project completion, replacing an existing 1200-amp 
electrical breaker, and increasing the maximum payable by $25,300, from $419,109 to 
$444,409, to cover the cost of the project –   
MAKE FINDING PROJECT IS EXEMPT FROM FURTHER CEQA REVIEW PER 
SECTIONS 15301 AND 15061(b)(3) OF STATE CEQA GUIDELINES; APPROVE; 
AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN  

 
CA 
11) Proposed retroactive Agreement with OEC Medical Systems, Inc., an independent 

contractor, for radiology equipment service and support from October 11, 2017 through 
October 10, 2024, in an amount not to exceed $51,282 –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  10.18.17 
 
 

Page | 4  

 

CA 
12) Proposed Amendment No. 2 to Agreement 2016-030 with Valley Neurosurgery and 

Neurorestoration Center, A Medical Corporation, an independent contractor, for 
professional medical services in the Department of Surgery, for the period July 1, 2016 
through June 30, 2021, adding electroencephalogram monitoring coverage and 
technician support, and increasing the maximum payable by $300,760, from 
$10,668,032 to $10,968,792, to cover the term –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
CA 
13) Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 7 to Agreement 947-2008 with Toyon 

Associates, Inc., an independent contractor, for third-party reimbursement services, for 
the period October 14, 2008 through October 13, 2017, extending the term for one year 
from October 14, 2017 through October 13, 2018, incorporating changes to the hourly 
rates, and increasing the maximum payable by $400,000, from $2,090,000 to 
$2,490,000, to cover the extended term –    
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 

 
14) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Financial Officer report –  

RECEIVE AND FILE 
 

15) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Executive Officer report –  
RECEIVE AND FILE 
 

CA 
16) Claims and Lawsuits Filed as of September 30, 2017 –  

RECEIVE AND FILE 
 

CA 
17) Proposed corrections to minutes for Kern County Hospital Authority Board of 

Governors regular meetings –  
 APPROVE 
 
CA 
18) Proposed acceptance of donation from CNA of travel and related expenses to cover all 

costs for one or more Kern Medical employees to attend the Health Care Compliance 
Association “Healthcare Enforcement Compliance Institute” in Washington, D.C., from 
October 29, 2017 through November 1, 2017 –  

 APPROVE; ADOPT RESOLUTION 
 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

19) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health and 
Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) –  



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  10.18.17 
 
 

Page | 5  

 

20)  PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION - Title: Chief Executive Officer 
(Government Code Section 54957) – 

 
21) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(3)) Number of cases: One (1) Significant 
exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Governors on the advice of legal 
counsel, based on: The receipt of a claim pursuant to the Government Claims Act or 
some other written communication from a potential plaintiff threatening litigation, which 
non-exempt claim or communication is available for public inspection – 
 

22) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  
(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: In the Matter of the 
Accusation Against: Kern Medical Center, dba Kern Medical Center Campus 
Pharmacy, et al., Case No. 5551 
 

RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
ADJOURN TO WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 15, 2017, AT 11:30 A.M. 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION FOR AGENDA ITEMS 
 
All agenda item supporting documentation is available for public review at Kern Medical 
Center in the Administration Department, 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, 93306 
during regular business hours, 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, following the 
posting of the agenda.  Any supporting documentation that relates to an agenda item for an 
open session of any regular meeting that is distributed after the agenda is posted and prior to 
the meeting will also be available for review at the same location.   

 
 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
(Government Code Section 54953.2) 

 

The Kern Medical Center Conference Room is accessible to persons with disabilities. 
Disabled individuals who need special assistance to attend or participate in a meeting of the 
Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors may request assistance at Kern Medical 
Center in the Administration Department, 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, California, 
or by calling (661) 326-2102. Every effort will be made to reasonably accommodate individuals 
with disabilities by making meeting material available in alternative formats. Requests for 
assistance should be made five (5) working days in advance of a meeting whenever possible. 
 
  



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  10.18.17 
 
 

Page | 6  

 

16) CLAIMS AND LAWSUITS FILED AS OF SEPTEMBER 31, 2017 –  
RECEIVE AND FILE 

 
A) Claim in the matter of Michael Cacopardo v. Kern County Hospital Authority 
B) Claim in the matter of Diane White v. Kern County Hospital Authority 
C) Complaint in the matter of Patrick J. Cavanaugh v. Donny Youngblood, et al 

 
 

CA 
17) PROPOSED CORRECTIONS TO MINUTES FOR KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL 

AUTHORITY BOARD OF GOVERNORS REGULAR MEETINGS –  
 APPROVE 
 

A) Minutes for meeting on August 16, 2017 
 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

  
  

October 18, 2017  
  

Subject:  Presentation by the Vice President of Ambulatory Services recognizing the Chemotherapy 

Clinic remodel at Columbus Street 
 

Recommended Action:  Make presentation 

 

Summary: 
 
Presentation by the Vice President of Ambulatory Services recognizing the Kern Medical Chemotherapy 
Clinic remodel at Columbus Street. 

 
. 
 



 
 
 
 
 

SUMMARY OF PROCEEDINGS 

 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
 

Kern Medical 
1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 

Conference Room 1058 
Bakersfield, California 93306 

 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, September 20, 2017 
 

11:30 A.M. 
 

BOARD RECONVENED 
 
Directors present: Berjis, Bigler, Lawson, McGauley, McLaughlin, Pelz, Sistrunk 
Directors absent: None 
 
NOTE: The vote is displayed in bold below each item. For example, Lawson-McLaughlin 
denotes Director Lawson made the motion and Vice Chair McLaughlin seconded the motion. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED WITH 
A "CA" WERE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND APPROVED BY ONE MOTION. 
 
BOARD ACTION SHOWN IN CAPS 

 
 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 
 

1) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any matter 
not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members may respond 
briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for 
clarification, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report 
back to the Board at a later meeting. Also, the Board may take action to direct the staff 
to place a matter of business on a future agenda. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO 
MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR NAME BEFORE MAKING YOUR 
PRESENTATION. THANK YOU! 
 
NO ONE HEARD 
 

 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                                                                     
  9.20.17 
 
 

Page 2 of 7 

BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 
 
2) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report on 

their own activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or 
take action to have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Government 
Code section 54954.2(a)(2)) 

 
CHAIRMAN BIGLER REPORTED THAT KERN MEDICAL WILL SPONSOR 
‘MARVELOUS MONDAY’ AT THE KERN COUNTY FAIR ON MONDAY, 
SEPTEMBER 25, 2017, FROM 3:00 P.M. TO 8:00 P.M. THAT WILL INCLUDE LIVE 
DEMONSTRATIONS OF THE DA VINCI SURGICAL ROBOT, CAR SEAT SAFETY, 
AND ARTIFACTS FROM KERN MEDICAL’S 150-YEAR HISTORY  
 
 

RECOGNITION 
 

3) Presentation by the Chief Nursing Officer recognizing the Clairvia Implementation 
Team at Kern Medical –  
MADE PRESENTATION    

 
 

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
CA 
4) Minutes for Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors regular meeting on 

August 16, 2017 –  
APPROVED 

 Sistrunk-McGauley: 7 Ayes 
 

CA 
5) Proposed Agreement with Williams Scotsman, Inc., an independent contractor, for 

lease of a modular trailer to be located at 1111 Columbus Street for a term of 72 months 
commencing upon delivery, in an amount not to exceed $260,000 – 
APPROVED; MADE FINDING THAT PROJECT IS EXEMPT FROM CEQA REVIEW 
PER SECTIONS 15301, 15302, AND 15061 (b)(3) OF STATE CEQA GUIDELINES; 
AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 056-2017 
Sistrunk-McGauley: All Ayes 

 
CA 
6) Proposed Agreement with Glooko, Inc., an independent contractor, containing 

nonstandard terms and conditions, for remote patient monitoring for diabetes, for a term 
of 12 months commencing on delivery of equipment, in amount not to exceed $5,370 
– 

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 057-2017 
Sistrunk-McGauley: All Ayes 

 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                                                                     
  9.20.17 
 
 

Page 3 of 7 

 
CA 
7) Proposed Resolution authorizing the Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Executive 

Officer to sign Whole Person Care Pilot Program Certifications of Lead Entity Reports 
as necessary, for any of the reports, invoice- or budget-related documents required in 
the Special Terms and Conditions of the California section 1115 Medi-Cal 2020 
Demonstration Waiver specific to the Whole Person Care Pilot program and any other 
reports, invoice- or budget related documents requested by the California Department 
of Health Care Services specific to the Whole Person Care Pilot program – 
APPROVED; ADOPTED RESOLUTION 2017-006 
Sistrunk-McGauley: All Ayes 

 
CA 
8) Request to employ retired Kern County Hospital Authority employee Anabel Moreno, 

as Extra Help Program Specialist II, for the period ending June 30, 2018, or 960 hours, 
whichever occurs first, effective September 21, 2017 –    

 APPROVED 
 Sistrunk-McGauley: All Ayes 
 
CA 
9) Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 06816 with Health Advocates, 

LLC, an independent contractor, for accounts receivable and financial services, 
extending the term for three years from July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2020, and 
increasing the maximum payable by $3,000,000, from $1,000,000 to $4,000,000, to 
cover the extended term –  

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 058-2017 
 Sistrunk-McGauley: All Ayes 
 
CA 
10)  Report on quarterly expenditures authorized by Kern County Hospital Authority Chief 

Executive Officer for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 –  
RECEIVED AND FILED 
Sistrunk-McGauley: All Ayes 

 
CA 
11) Proposed Resolution revising the delegation of authority of the Kern County Hospital 

Authority Chief Executive Officer to enter into contracts and to secure and pay for 
certain professional and special services –  

 APPROVED; ADOPTED RESOLUTION 2017-007 
 Sistrunk-McGauley: All Ayes 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                                                                     
  9.20.17 
 
 

Page 4 of 7 

 
CA 
12) Proposed retroactive Agreement 17-94322 with the California Department of Health 

Care Services, an independent contractor, for funding the nonfederal share of the 
Public Hospital Redesign and Incentives in the Medi-Cal Learning Collaboratives of the 
California Medi-Cal 2020 Demonstration Project from July 1, 2017 through June 30, 
2020, in an amount not to exceed $10,800 – 

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND PRIME MANAGER 
TO SIGN AGREEMENT 059-2017 

 Sistrunk-McGauley: All Ayes 
 
CA 
13) Proposed retroactive Agreement with Pacific Gynecologic Specialists, an independent 

contractor, for professional medical services in the Department of Obstetrics and 
Gynecology from September 1, 2017 through August 31, 2019, in an amount not to 
exceed $780,000 –    
APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 060-2017 
Sistrunk-McGauley: All Ayes 

 
CA 
14) Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 3 to Agreement 392-2015 with Armanino LLP, 

doing business as AMF Media Group, an independent contractor, for communication 
consulting services, extending the term through December 31, 2017, and increasing 
the maximum payable by $500,000, from $3,021,000 to $3,521,000, to cover the 
extended term – 

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 061-2017 
 Sistrunk-McGauley: All Ayes 
 
CA 
15) Proposed Amendment No. 9 to Agreement 042-2015 with Cantu Management Group, 

Inc., an independent contractor, for Chief Financial Officer and healthcare financial 
management services, extending the term for an additional two years from February 9, 
2019, through February 8, 2021, deleting seven positions, adding three positions, 
decreasing the monthly management fee by $56,122, from $318,666 to $262,544, 
decreasing the monthly staffing fee by 5%, from 49% to 44%, revising the methodology 
for payment of the performance fee from quarterly to annually, incorporating 
performance measures for FY 2017-2018, modifying certain terms to comply with 
applicable law and authority policy, and increasing the maximum payable by 
$13,157,552, from $16,880,688 to $30,038,240, effective October 1, 2017 –  

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 062-2017 
 Sistrunk-McGauley: All Ayes 
 
 
 
 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                                                                     
  9.20.17 
 
 

Page 5 of 7 

 
CA 
16) Proposed retroactive Agreements with File Recoup, an independent contractor, 

containing nonstandard terms and conditions, for diagnostic and data recovery 
services, in an amount not to exceed $5,000, effective September 11, 2017 –   
APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN AGREEMENTS 
063-2017 AND 064-2017 

 Sistrunk-McGauley: All Ayes 
 
CA 
17) Proposed Agreement with Jerry Cheriyan, M.D., a contract employee, for professional 

medical services in the Department of Surgery from November 11, 2017 through 
November 10, 2020, in an amount not to exceed $1,850,400 –  

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 065-2017 
SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO FORM BY COUNSEL 
Sistrunk-McGauley: All Ayes 

 
18) Proposed presentation by Moss-Adams LLP regarding the audit plan for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2017 – 
 HEARD PRESENTATION; RECEIVED AND FILED 
 Pelz-McLaughlin: All Ayes 
 
19) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Financial Officer report –  

RECEIVED AND FILED 
Berjis-McLaughlin: All Ayes 
 

20) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Executive Officer report –  
RECEIVED AND FILED 
Pelz-Lawson: All Ayes 
 

CA 
21) Claims and Lawsuits Filed as of August 31, 2017 –  

RECEIVED AND FILED 
Sistrunk-McGauley: All Ayes 
 

CA 
22) Proposed corrections to minutes for Kern County Hospital Authority Board of 

Governors regular meetings –  
 APPROVED 

Sistrunk-McGauley: All Ayes 
 
 
ADJOURNED TO CLOSED SESSION 
McGauley-Sistrunk 
 

 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                                                                     
  9.20.17 
 
 

Page 6 of 7 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

23) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health and 
Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 

 
24)  Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or taking action on authority 

trade secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) – SEE RESULTS 
BELOW 

 
25) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(3)) Number of cases: One (1) Significant 
exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Governors on the advice of legal 
counsel, based on: The receipt of a claim pursuant to the Government Claims Act or 
some other written communication from a potential plaintiff threatening litigation, which 
non-exempt claim or communication is available for public inspection – SEE RESULTS 
BELOW 
 

26) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  
(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Service Employees 
International Union, Local 521 v. County of Kern, et al., Public Employment Relations 
Board Case No. LA-CE-1084-M – SEE RESULTS BELOW 
 

27) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  
(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Service Employees 
International Union, Local 521 v. County of Kern, et al., Public Employment Relations 
Board Case No. LA-CE-1096-M – SEE RESULTS BELOW 
 

28) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  
 (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Service Employees 

International Union, Local 521 v. Kern County Hospital Authority, Public Employment 
Relations Board Case No. LA-CE-1121-M – SEE RESULTS BELOW 

 
 

RECONVENED FROM CLOSED SESSION 
Berjis-Pelz 
 
REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

Item No. 23 concerning a Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health 
practitioners (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – HEARD; BY A 
UNANIMOUS VOTE (MOTION BY DIRECTOR LAWSON, SECONDED BY 
DIRECTOR SISTRUNK), THE BOARD APPROVED ALL PROVIDERS 
RECOMMENDED FOR REAPPOINTMENT, REVIEW AND RELEASE OF 
PROCTORING, AND VOLUNTARY RESIGNATION OF PRIVILEGES; NO OTHER 
REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                                                                     
  9.20.17 
 
 

Page 7 of 7 

Item No. 24 concerning REQUEST FOR CLOSED SESSION regarding peer review of 
health facilities (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – HEARD; NO 
REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 
 
Item No. 25 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED 
LITIGATION (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(3)) Number of cases: One (1) 
Significant exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Governors on the advice 
of legal counsel, based on: The receipt of a claim pursuant to the Government Claims 
Act or some other written communication from a potential plaintiff threatening litigation, 
which non-exempt claim or communication is available for public inspection – HEARD; 
NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 
 
Item No. 26 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING 
LITIGATION (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Service 
Employees International Union, Local 521 v. County of Kern, et al., Public Employment 
Relations Board Case No. LA-CE-1084-M – HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION 
TAKEN 
 
Item No. 27 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING 
LITIGATION (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Service 
Employees International Union, Local 521 v. County of Kern, et al., Public Employment 
Relations Board Case No. LA-CE-1096-M – HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION 
TAKEN 
 
Item No. 28 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING 
LITIGATION (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Service 
Employees International Union, Local 521 v. Kern County Hospital Authority, Public 
Employment Relations Board Case No. LA-CE-1121-M – HEARD; NO REPORTABLE 
ACTION TAKEN 

 
 
ADJOURN TO WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 18, 2017, AT 11:30 A.M. 
Berjis 
 
 
 
/s/ Mona A. Allen 

Authority Board Coordinator 
 
 
 
/s/ Russell E. Bigler 

Chairman, Board of Governors 
Kern County Hospital Authority  

 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

  
  
October 18, 2017  
  
Subject: Proposed recommendation to reappoint Nancy Lawson (ex-officio) to the Kern County 
Hospital Authority Board of Governors, term to expire December 31, 2018 
  
Recommended Action: Approve; Refer to Kern County Board of Supervisors to make appointment  
  
Summary:    
  
On December 6, 2016, the Kern County Board of Supervisors amended Kern County Ordinance Code 
section 2.170.060 to provide for a designee position for the County Administrative Officer on the Kern 
County Hospital Authority Board of Governors.  Nancy Lawson was named as the appointee to fill this 
position.  Ms. Lawson’s term expires December 31, 2017.  Kern Medical is recommending that Ms. 
Lawson be reappointed for an additional one-year term. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the proposed recommendation to reappoint 
Nancy Lawson (ex-officio) to the Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors, and refer the 
recommendation to the Kern County Board of Supervisors to make the appointment. 
 
 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

  
  

October 18, 2017  
  

Subject:  Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 15 to Agreement 925-2002 with nThrive Solutions, Inc. 

 

Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 

 

Summary: 
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed retroactive Amendment No. 15 with nThrive 
Solutions, Inc. for oncology data management and abstracting services which is a requirement to 
maintain certification with the American College of Surgeons.  The purpose of the amendment is to 
extend the term for one year from July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018, and increasing the maximum 
payable by $289,545, from $9,953,731 to $10,243,276, to cover the extended term.  
 
 
 



























 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

  
  

October 18, 2017  
  

Subject:  Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 20716 with J. Chandrasekhar, Inc. 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 

Summary: 
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed retroactive Amendment No. 1 with  
J. Chandrasekhar, Inc. to provide professional medical services to patients needing pulmonary and 
critical care services as well as teaching services to resident physicians.  Dr. Chandrasekhar has provided 
the contracted services indicated above at Kern Medical since 2010. 
 
This agreement may be terminated without cause by either party with 30 days’ written notice.  The 
proposed amendment extends this agreement by one year and expires October 14, 2018.  The maximum 
payable under this Agreement shall not exceed $760,000 over the two years of the agreement that 
commenced October 15, 2016.   









 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

  
  

October 18, 2017  
  

Subject:  Proposed retroactive Change Order No. 6 to contract with Black Hall Construction, Inc., for 

the G Wing Decommission Project 
 

Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 

 

Summary: 
 
Kern Medical entered in to an agreement with Black Hall Construction, Inc. to physically and seismically 
separate G-wing from C-wing, as required by California Seismic Compliance Code.  The proposed change 
order no. six (6) totals $6,861 for a new contract amount of $520,711. 
 
Item one of this change order will allow the contractor to install asphalt patching at the handicap ramp 
as required by OSHPD.  
 
Item two of this change order will allow the contractor to install mechanical doors in place of power 
actuated doors.  
 
To mitigate potential delays with future contract changes, we are requesting your Board’s approval for 
Mr. Judd, the Hospital Chief Executive Officer, to approve all future change orders in an amount not to 
exceed an additional $100,000, for a total potential contract amount of $620,711. 

 
. 
 







 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

  
  

October 18, 2017  
  

Subject:  Proposed Amendment No. 2 with KSA Group Architects  

 

Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 

 

Summary: 
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the Proposed Amendment No. Two (2) with KSA Group 
Architects in increasing the maximum payable amount of $250,000, to provide project completion for 
various projects at facilities operated by Authority.   
 
 
 







 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

  
  

October 18, 2017  
  

Subject:  Proposed Retroactive Amendment No. 9 to Engineering Services Agreement with Vantage 

Technology Consulting Group 
 

Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 

 

Summary: 
 
Under the County contracting framework, Kern Medical had amended the agreement with Vantage for 
engineering design services on various projects, including: Information systems closet room upgrades, 
nurse call projects, Phillips wiring project, and the emergency power project.  The emergency power 
project brings emergency power to B and C Wings to support critical needs in the event of an electrical 
outage.  This proposed amendment number nine (9) with Vantage in the amount of $25,300, for a new 
contract amount of $444,408.19, provides additional design, consulting services, and construction 
administration to remove and replace an existing 1200 amp electrical breaker at the distribution board, 
as well as, design, engineering, OSHPD approval, and construction administration, to address the 
fire/smoke damper deficiencies in the new information systems closet room 3445. 
 
 









 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

  
  

October 18, 2017  
  

Subject:  Proposed retroactive Agreement with OEC Medical Systems, Inc. 

 

Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 

 

Summary: 
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed retroactive agreement with OEC Medical 
Systems, Inc., for service and preventative maintenance for one mini C-arm radiological imaging unit, in 
an amount not to exceed $51,282 from October 11, 2017 through October 10, 2024.  The service 
agreement includes key parts, labor, and annual preventative maintenance on the unit. 
 
 
 



















 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
October 18, 2017 
 
Subject:  Proposed Amendment No. 2 with Valley Neurosurgery and Neurorestoration Center, 
A Medical Corporation 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary: 
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the Proposed Amendment No. 2 with Valley 
Neurosurgery and Neurorestoration Center (“Valley Neurosurgery”) to provide 
neurophysiological monitoring in support of the development of an epilepsy center, continuous 
electroencephalogram (“EEG”) monitoring in the ICU, and routine EEG monitoring.   
 
Kern Medical has contracted with Valley Neurosurgery to provide neurosurgical services in the 
Department of Surgery since June 22, 2016.  With Valley Neurosurgery continuing to enhance 
neurosurgical services at the medical center, Kern Medical seeks to develop an epilepsy center 
and provide additional EEG monitoring services in the ICU.  The epilepsy center requires having 
physicians and surgeons skilled in the diagnosis and treatment of epilepsy as well as equipment 
and non-physician staff to monitor seizures.  This proposed amendment allows for Valley 
Neurosurgery to provide the non-physician staff, including EEG technicians, to perform all 
inpatient and outpatient monitoring for the epilepsy center, continuous EEG monitoring for ICU 
patients, and routine EEGs in the hospital.   
 
Over the past year the hospital has contracted with an outside agency to provide EEG technicians 
for routine EEG monitoring due to difficulties to recruit qualified full-time staff.  With Valley 
Neurosurgery now providing monitoring for both the epilepsy center-related services and 
continuous monitoring in the ICU, Valley Neurosurgery will also provide non-physician staff for 
routine EEG monitoring.  While the maximum payable under the agreement increases for the 
additional services that will now be provided at the hospital, it affords the hospital significant 
savings for routine EEG monitoring technician services rather than contracting with another 
outside agency. 
 
The Hospital Authority shall pay Valley Neurosurgery a per diem rate of $206 for 
neurophysiological monitoring provided by non-physician personnel as described above.  This 
amendment increases the maximum compensation payable under this Agreement by $300,760 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 

over the remaining four years of this five-year agreement.  The maximum payable of this 
agreement shall not exceed $10,968,792 over the five-year term. 









 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

  
  

October 18, 2017  
  

Subject:  Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 7 with Toyon Associates, Inc. 

 

Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 

 

Summary: 
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 7 with Toyon 
Associates, Inc., for the period October 14, 2008 through October 13, 2017, extending the term for one 
year from October 14, 2017 through October 13, 2018, incorporating changes to the hourly rates, and 
increasing the maximum payable by $400,000, from $2,090,000 to $2,490,000, to cover the extended 
term. 
 
 
 













 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

  
  

October 18, 2017  
  

Subject:  Comments Regarding Budget Variances for Operating Expenses – August 2017 

 

Recommended Action:  Receive and File 

 

Summary: 
 
For August 2017, most operating expenses and statistics remain fairly well in line with budgeted 
expectations.  Total operating expenses have a favorable budget variance on both a month to date and 
a year to date basis.  The following items have budget variances for the month of August 2017:  
 
Indigent Funding: 

 Each month Kern Medical only recognizes ninety-five percent of the total accrued amount receivable 
from indigent funding.  This is a conservative approach that reserves five percent of the total receivable 
indigent funding to account for the possibility that some funding could be taken back by the funding 
sources at a later time due to changes in calculations or in the method that funds are allocated among 
California’s public hospitals.  
 
Benefits: 

 Benefits expense has a favorable budget variance for the month of August 2017 due to a calculation 
error in the prior month of July 2017.  The error resulted in July 2017 benefits being overstated by about 
$1.7M.  A corresponding adjustment was made in August 2017 that causes benefits to be understated 
by $1.7M for the month, but back in line with plan on a year-to-date basis.  Kern Medical started a 
transition to new payroll software in April 2017.  The Kern Medical Payroll staff also assumed many 
payroll related tasks, including employee benefits that had previously been performed by the County of 
Kern Payroll Department.   

 
Medical Fees: 

 Medical fees have a favorable budget variance for the month of August 2017 due to a reduction in 
the monthly accrual for this expense.  The accrual was reduced because several of the physicians that 
were included in the calculation have recently been hired as Kern Medical employees and are no longer 
part of the medical fees monthly expense. 
 

  



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Supplies: 

 Supply expenses has an unfavorable budget variance for the month of August 2017 mainly due to an 
increase in pharmaceutical costs for various reasons.  Pharmaceutical shortages have forced Kern 
Medical to purchase drugs from sources at three to ten times the cost that we normally would pay to 
Cardinal Health, our main provider.  The effects of our participation in our new Global Purchasing 
Organization (GPO), HPG International, should be realized in the next few months as credits are received 
for prior months’ drug purchases rebilled at more favorable prices.  In addition to the above, there have 
recently been some relatively expensive drugs purchased for a few patients with rare medical conditions. 
 
Purchased Services: 

 Purchased services has an unfavorable budget variance for the month of August 2017 due in part to 
higher than average out of network expenses.  Kern Medical was also under accrued for a few vendors 
in the prior month.  There were also a few new vendors engaged and their services were charged to this 
line item.  
 
Other Expenses: 

 Other expenses have an unfavorable budget variance for the month of August 2017 mainly because 
of dues and subscriptions and license fees for new decision support resources and other services.  
Repairs and maintenance expenses were also higher than average for the month because of 
miscellaneous projects throughout the hospital and clinics. 
 
 



BOARD OF GOVERNORS’ FINANCIAL REPORT
KERN MEDICAL – AUGUST 2017

OCTOBER 2017



Slide 1



Slide 2



Slide 3



Slide 4



Slide 5



Slide 6



Slide 7



Slide 8



Slide 9



Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

October 18, 2017 

Subject:  Kern County Hospital Authority, Chief Executive Officer Report 

Recommended Action:  Receive and File 

Summary: 

The Chief Executive Officer has provided the attached 3-month trend Analysis: Volume and 
Strategic Indicators for Kern Medical. 



BOARD OF GOVERNORS’ VOLUMES REPORT
KERN MEDICAL – AUGUST 2017

OCTOBER 2017



Slide 1



Slide 2



Slide 3



Slide 4



Slide 5



Slide 6



 
 
 
 

SUMMARY OF PROCEEDINGS 

 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
 

Kern Medical 
1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 

Conference Room 1058 
Bakersfield, California 93306 

 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, August 16, 2017 
 

11:30 A.M. 
 

BOARD RECONVENED 
 
Directors present: Berjis, Bigler, Lawson, McGauley, McLaughlin, Pelz, Sistrunk 
Directors absent: None 

 
NOTE: The vote is displayed in bold below each item. For example, Lawson-McLaughlin 
denotes Director Lawson made the motion and Vice Chair McLaughlin seconded the motion. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED WITH 
A "CA" WERE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND APPROVED BY ONE MOTION. 
 
BOARD ACTION SHOWN IN CAPS 

 
 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 
 

1) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any matter 
not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members may respond 
briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for 
clarification, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report 
back to the Board at a later meeting. Also, the Board may take action to direct the staff 
to place a matter of business on a future agenda. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO 
MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR NAME BEFORE MAKING YOUR 
PRESENTATION. THANK YOU! 
 
NO ONE HEARD 
  

 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                    
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                                                                     
  8.16.17 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 
 
2) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report on 

their own activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or 
take action to have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Government 
Code section 54954.2(a)(2)) 
 
NO ONE HEARD 
 
 

RECOGNITION 
 

3) Presentation by the Chief Medical Officer recognizing the Antimicrobial Stewardship 
program at Kern Medical –  
MADE PRESENTATION   

 
 

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
CA 
4) Minutes for Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors regular meeting on July 

19, 2017 –  
APPROVED  
Pelz-Lawson: All Ayes 

 
5) Public hearing regarding the meet and confer impasse between representatives of the 

Kern County Hospital Authority and Service Employees International Union, Local 521, 
and Resolution implementing the Kern Medical Center Disciplinary Policy –  
OPENED HEARING; CARMEN MORALES, NP, MICHAEL CARTER, SERVICE 
EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION, LOCAL 521, DANIEL BOWEN, 
AIRCONDITIONING MECHANIC, CONNIE EIDSON, RN, AND JERRI GUEVARA, 
OFFICE SERVICES SPECIALIST, HEARD; CLOSED HEARING; APPROVED; 
ADOPTED RESOLUTION 2017-005; DIRECTED STAFF TO IMPLEMENT POLICY 
McLaughlin-Sistrunk: All Ayes 

 
CA 
6) Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 6 to Agreement 194-2012 with Ravi Patel, M.D. 

Inc., doing business as Comprehensive Blood and Cancer Center, an independent 
contractor, for medical practice management services at Kern Medical leased clinics, 
extending the term for one year from August 1, 2017 through July 31, 2018, and 
increasing the maximum payable by $1,200,000, from $2,146,000 to $3,346,000, to 
cover the extended term –  
APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 2017-051 
Pelz-Lawson: All Ayes 

 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                    
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                                                                     
  8.16.17 

Page 3 of 5 
 

 
CA 
7) Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 3 to Agreement 453-2015 with Comprehensive 

Cardiovascular Medical Group, Inc., an independent contractor, for professional 
medical services in the Department of Medicine, extending the term for one year from 
August 1, 2017 through July 31, 2018, and increasing the maximum payable by 
$430,000, from $1,055,000 to $1,485,000, to cover the extended term – 
APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 2017-052 
Pelz-Lawson: All Ayes 

 

CA 
8)  Proposed Change Order No. 2 to Agreement 2016-052 Best Electric, an independent 

contractor, for construction management services related to the emergency power 
distribution upgrades, increasing the maximum payable by $34,736 to $698,957, to 
cover the cost of additional services –  
MADE FINDING PROJECT IS EXEMPT FROM FURTHER CEQA REVIEW PER 
SECTIONS 15301 AND 15061(b)(3) OF STATE CEQA GUIDELINES; APPROVED; 
AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 2017-053; AUTHORIZED CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO APPROVE ANY FUTURE CHANGE ORDERS IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 10% OF THE TOTAL CONTRACT PRICE  
Pelz-Lawson: All Ayes 

 

CA 
9) Proposed Change Order No. 5 to Agreement 2016-074 with Anderson Group 

International, an independent contractor, for construction management services related 
to the infusion clinic project, increasing the maximum payable by $50,322 to $510,649, 
to cover the cost of additional services –  
MADE FINDING PROJECT IS EXEMPT FROM FURTHER CEQA REVIEW PER 
SECTIONS 15301 AND 15061(b)(3) OF STATE CEQA GUIDELINES; APPROVED; 
AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 2017-054; AUTHORIZED CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO APPROVE ANY FUTURE CHANGE ORDERS IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 5% OF THE TOTAL CONTRACT PRICE  
Pelz-Lawson: All Ayes 

 

CA 
10) Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 16016 with Experian Health, 

Inc., an independent contractor, for patient demographic verification products and 
services, effective July 1, 2017, in an amount not to exceed $300,000 –  
APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN AGREEMENT 
2017-055  
Pelz-Lawson: All Ayes 

 
CA  

11) Request to employ retired Kern County Hospital Authority employee Linda Markham, 
as Per DiemExtra Help Medical Social Worker, for the period ending June 30, 2018, 
or 960 hours, whichever occurs first, effective August 17, 2017 –  
APPROVED 
Pelz-Lawson: All Ayes 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                    
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                                                                     
  8.16.17 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 
CORRECTION PER SUMMARY OF OCTOBER 18, 2017, ITEM 17 

 
CA  
12) Request approval of Medical Staff policies concerning Telemedicine, Guidelines for 

Addressing Impaired Medical Staff Members, and the Late Career Practitioner –  
APPROVED POLICIES 
Pelz-Lawson: All Ayes 

 
13) Request to employ retired Kern County Hospital Authority employee Wedad M. 

Rizkalla, M.D., as Associate-Pediatrics, for the period ending June 30, 2018, or 960 
hours, whichever occurs first, effective September 4, 2017 –  
APPROVED 
Berjis-McGauley: All Ayes 
 

14) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Financial Officer report – 
RECEIVED AND FILED 
Berjis-McGauley: All Ayes 

 
15) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Executive Officer report – 

RECEIVED AND FILED 
Berjis-Sistrunk: All Ayes 
 

CA 
16) Claims and Lawsuits Filed as of July 31, 2017 –  

RECEIVED AND FILED 
Pelz-Lawson: All Ayes 

 
 
ADJOURNED TO CLOSED SESSION 
McGauley-McLaughlin 
 

 
CLOSED SESSION 

 
17) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health and 

Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 
 
18) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(3)) Number of cases: Two (2) Significant 
exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Governors on the advice of legal 
counsel, based on: The receipt of a claim pursuant to the Government Claims Act or 
some other written communication from a potential plaintiff threatening litigation, which 
non-exempt claim or communication is available for public inspection – SEE RESULTS 
BELOW 

 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                    
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                                                                     
  8.16.17 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 
 
19) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION - Title: Chief Executive Officer   

(Government Code Section 54957) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 
 
RECONVENED FROM CLOSED SESSION 
McGauley-Lawson 
 
 
REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

Item No. 17 concerning a Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health 
practitioners (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – HEARD; BY A 
UNANIMOUS VOTE (MOTION BY DIRECTOR LAWSON, SECOND BY DIRECTOR 
PELZ), THE BOARD APPROVED ALL PROVIDERS RECOMMENDED FOR INITIAL 
APPOINTMENT, REAPPOINTMENT, REVIEW AND RELEASE OF PROCTORING, 
ADVANCE IN STAFF STATUS, AND AUTOMATIC TERMINATION OF PRIVILEGES; 
NO OTHER REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 
 
Item No. 18 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED 
LITIGATION (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(3)) Number of cases: Two 

(2) Significant exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Governors on the 
advice of legal counsel, based on: The receipt of a claim pursuant to the Government 
Claims Act or some other written communication from a potential plaintiff threatening 
litigation, which non-exempt claim or communication is available for public inspection 
– HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 
 
Item No. 19 concerning PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION – Title: 
Chief Executive Officer (Government Code Section 54957) – HEARD; NO 
REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 

 
 
ADJOURNED TO WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 AT 11:30 A.M. 
Sistrunk 
 
 
 
/s/ Raquel D. ForeMona A. Allen 

Authority Board Coordinator 
 

CORRECTION PER SUMMARY OF OCTOBER 18, 2017, ITEM 17 
 
 
 
/s/ Russell E. Bigler 

Chairman, Board of Governors 
Kern County Hospital Authority  



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

  
  

October 18, 2017 
 
Subject:  Proposed acceptance of donation of travel and related expenses from CNA 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Adopt Resolution 
 
Summary: 
 
The Authority’s conflict of interest policy prohibits employees from receiving or accepting money or any 
other consideration from anyone other than the Authority for the performance of an act which the 
employee would be required or expected to render in the regular course of his or her employment. 
 
CNA is the provider of Health Facilities Excess Coverage insurance to the Authority.  CNA, through its 
Health Pro Risk Control Fellowship Program, has offered to donate to the Authority all travel and related 
expenses not to exceed $5,000 for one or more Kern Medical employees to attend the Health Care 
Compliance Association “Healthcare Enforcement Compliance Institute” in Washington, D.C., from 
October 29, 2017 through November 1, 2017.   
  
Kern Medical recommends your Board adopt the resolution to accept the travel donation from CNA in 
an amount not to exceed $5,000 for registration, travel and related expenses and authorize the Chief 
Executive Officer to designate two employees to attend this important conference. 
 
. 
 



BEFORE THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

OF THE KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
_________________ 

 

 

In the matter of:             Resolution No. __________ 

 
ACCEPTANCE OF DONATION OF  

TRAVEL AND RELATED EXPENSES  

FROM CNA  

_____________________________________ 

 

 I, MONA A. ALLEN, Authority Board Coordinator for the Kern County Hospital 

Authority, hereby certify that the following Resolution, on motion of Director __________, 

seconded by Director __________, was duly and regularly adopted by the Board of 

Governors of the Kern County Hospital Authority at an official meeting thereof on the 18th 

day of October, 2017, by the following vote, and that a copy of the Resolution has been 

delivered to the Chairman of the Board of Governors.  

 

AYES:   

 

NOES:   

 

ABSENT:   

 

                  MONA A. ALLEN  

                 Authority Board Coordinator 

  Kern County Hospital Authority  

          

 

                ____________________________ 

                Mona A. Allen             

 

             

 

RESOLUTION 

 

Section 1.  WHEREAS: 

   

(a) The conflict of interest policy for Kern County Hospital Authority 

(“Authority”) prohibits Authority employees from receiving or accepting money or any 

other consideration from anyone other than the Authority for the performance of an act 

which the employee would be required or expected to render in the regular course of his or 

her employment; and 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

(b) CNA provides Health Facilities Excess Coverage insurance to the Kern 

County Hospital Authority; and 

 

(c) CNA, through its Health Pro Risk Control Fellowship Program, has offered 

to donate to the Authority all travel and related expenses for one or more Authority 

employees to attend the Health Care Compliance Association “Healthcare Enforcement 

Compliance Institute” in Washington, D.C., from October 29, 2017 through November 1, 

2017; and   

 

(d) The training session is necessary in connection with official Authority 

business; and  

  

(e) The Authority desires to obtain the donation of travel and related expenses 

to the Authority and will retain full control over the use of the donation; and  

  

(f) CNA has not made any restrictions as to how the donation may be used.  

 

 Section 2.  NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of 

Governors of the Kern County Hospital Authority, as follows: 

 

1. This Board finds the facts recited herein are true, and further finds that this 

Board has jurisdiction to consider, approve, and adopt the subject of this Resolution. 

 

2. This Board hereby accepts from CNA the donation of travel and related 

expenses to cover all costs for one or more Authority employees to travel to Washington, 

D.C., to attend the Health Care Compliance Association “Healthcare Enforcement 

Compliance Institute” from October 29, 2017 through November 1, 2017.   

  

3. This Board authorizes the Chief Executive Officer to designate one or more 

Authority employees to attend the Health Care Compliance Association “Healthcare 

Enforcement Compliance Institute” from October 29, 2017 through November 1, 2017.   

  

4. The Authority Board Coordinator shall provide copies of this Resolution to 

the following: 

 

  Chief Financial Officer 

  Legal Services Department 

  Risk Management Department 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2) 
 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold 
a closed session on October 18, 2017, to discharge its responsibility to evaluate and 
improve the quality of care rendered by health facilities and health practitioners. The 
closed session involves: 
 
 
   X    Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health 
and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) –   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold 
a closed session on October 18, 2017, to consider: 
 
 
   X    PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION – Title: Chief Executive 
Officer (Government Code Section 54957)    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Government Code Section 54956.9 
 
Based on the advice of Counsel, the Board of Governors is holding a closed session on 
October 18, 2017, to confer with, or receive advice from Counsel regarding pending 
litigation, because discussion in open session concerning this matter would prejudice the 
position of the authority in the litigation. The closed session involves: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(3).) Number of cases: One (1) 
Significant exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Governors on the 
advice of legal counsel, based on: The receipt of a claim pursuant to the 
Government Claims Act or some other written communication from a potential 
plaintiff threatening litigation, which non-exempt claim or communication is 
available for public inspection – 
  
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Government Code Section 54956.9 
 
Based on the advice of Counsel, the Board of Governors is holding a closed session on 
October 18, 2017, to confer with, or receive advice from Counsel regarding pending 
litigation, because discussion in open session concerning this matter would prejudice the 
position of the authority in the litigation. The closed session involves: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: In the Matter of the 
Accusation Against: Kern Medical Center, dba Kern Medical Center Campus 
Pharmacy, et al., Case No. 5551 –  
 

 
 




